
BUDGET COMMITTEE 
Special Budget Review 

August 29, 2016 
NOT APPROVED 

 
 
Committee Members Present:  C. Crandall, K. LaForge, P. Curran, D. Fanton, D. Healy, J. Hopkins, 

and D. Root 
 
Others Present:  T. Boyde, H.R. Budinger, R. Christman, G. Green, M. Hennessy, C. Jessup, B. 

Kelly, J. Luckey, T. Miner, B. Riehle, T. Ross, K. Slep, B. Starks, M. Washer, R. Whitney 
 
Call to Order:   Budget Committee Chairman Curt Crandall called the meeting to order at 9:06 a.m. 
 
Clerk of the Board – 2017 Budget Review 
 
 Clerk of the Board Brenda Rigby Riehle attended the meeting to discuss her 2017 budget 
requests for the following cost centers:  Legislative Board (A1010), Clerk of the Board (A1040), 
Central Services – Printing (A1670), Central Services – UPS (A1672), Central Services – Postage 
(A1673), Unallocated Insurance (A1910), Municipal Association Dues (A1920), and the CS Risk 
Retention Fund.  Mrs. Riehle’s 2017 budget requests were very similar to 2016. The A1010 
(Legislative Board) is $16,000 less as the Legislative Board chairs were purchased in 2016. 
 

Mrs. Riehle stated if additional cuts needed to be made in A1010 (Legislative Board), Board 
members would have to cut back on their conferences and travel. Legislator Root questioned if we 
have seen a savings in our postage (A1010 Central Services) since moving to iPad’s.  Mrs. Riehle 
said that yes we have seen a savings in regards to distributing agenda’s, minutes, etc., but we do still 
have a significant amount of mail so the need for postage still remains.  Mrs. Riehle stated the CS 
Risk Retention Fund is where all of the County insurance claims are paid from, and we have budgeted 
for $290,000 for 2017.  County Treasurer Terri Ross stated the minimum this account needs is 
$250,000 which covers our deductible. Mrs. Riehle also added that she has requested the Secretary 
to the Clerk of Board be made a full time position.  

 
County Attorney – 2017 Budget Review 
 
 County Attorney Thomas Miner attended the meeting to discuss his 2017 budget requests for 
the County Attorney’s Office (A1420).  Attorney Miner stated his 2017 budget request reflects Section 
4 salaries as they existed at that time, but since have been reduced; therefore, those reductions to his 
budget are not reflected yet. Attorney Miner stated they have been successful in reducing postage 
costs by utilizing technology more.  Attorney Miner stated their mileage and conference expense has 
been increased. Attorney Miner has served as President to The County Attorney’s Association Board 
for the last two years, and with the addition of four new attorneys who will need ongoing training to 
stay current with the law, these conferences and training are needed. Attorney Miner stated he was 
able to cut $4000 in office supplies due to a newly negotiated contract with their major supplier 
Westlaw.  
 
District Attorney – 2017 Budget Review 
 
 District Attorney Keith Slep attended the meeting to discuss his 2017 budget requests for the 
District Attorney’s Office (A1165) and for Grand Jury (A1190) cost centers.  Attorney Slep stated he 
will make every effort to live within his budget; however, he believes next year we will need to budget 
to pay for experts needed in an upcoming trial. Attorney Slep also stated he would like to budget for a 
replacement vehicle as the current vehicle has a lot of miles and is increasing the need for repair 
money.  
 



Budget Committee 
August 29, 2016 

Page 2 of 4 

Public Defender - 2017 Budget Review 
 

Public Defender Barbara Kelley attended the meeting to discuss her 2017 budget requests for 
the Public Defender’s Office (A1170). Ms. Kelley stated she is optimistic they will have new offices to 
move into and will use grant funds for furnishings.  Ms. Kelley stated because of the way grants are 
written she doesn’t have a lot of room in the budget for major cuts. Ms. Kelley went on to say their 
mileage budget is high because our attorney’s go to justice court several times a week; however, we 
use our own personal vehicles so are only receiving reimbursement for the mileage.  

Emergency Services/Fire Service - 2017 Budget Review 
 

Emergency Management and Fire Director Jeff Luckey attended the meeting to discuss his 
2017 budget requests for Emergency Services (A3640) and Fire Services (A3410). Mr. Luckey noted 
there are no major changes to the budget this year. 

 
Legislator Root questioned what falls into the Communications line item. Mr. Luckey said this 

line item is where they purchase their radios and pagers from. Legislator Hopkins questioned how 
often these pieces of equipment last, and Mr. Luckey stated they can typically expect a 10-15 year 
lifespan.  

 
Real Property Tax Department – 2017 Budget Review 
 
 Real Property Tax Director Joe Budinger attended the meeting to discuss his 2017 budget 
requests for the Real Property Tax Department (A1355), noting that this year unfortunately they have 
an increase of $1500 in expenses due to the cost of a new software module on their website. 
Chairman Crandall questioned if there were any other areas in the budget this money could be shifted 
from, and Mr. Budinger stated he did look and doesn’t see where there is any wiggle room as it’s 
already going to be a struggle not having a lot of discretionary funds with most things being a fixed 
cost each year. Legislator Root questioned where their primary revenues come from. Mr. Budinger 
stated there are several major revenues with the biggest being the sale of tax maps and printing of tax 
rolls. Legislator Root questioned if this new software will take away from these revenues of printing 
them, and Mr. Budinger said he didn’t believe so as the new software is showing real-time 
information, but if anyone wants detailed data they will still need to have the printed files.   
 
County Clerk’s Office – 2017 Budget Review 
 
 County Clerk Robert Christman attended the meeting to discuss his 2017 budget requests for 
the County Clerk’s Office (A1410).  Mr. Christman stated if you look at his .1s you will see a dramatic 
decrease as two DMV positions went from full-time to part-time and two senior deputy staff retired. Mr. 
Christman stated it’s a substantial savings of $50,000 - $60,000. Mr. Christman stated they are 
currently digitizing their deed books and putting them in long-term storage, and this process helps us 
significantly in our labor because the more we digitize the less we are making copies. Mr. Christman 
stated they receive $10,000 - $11,000 per year for this project and it is working out well to do these in 
smaller chunks because if we find any errors, it’s easier to go back and make corrections. Mr. 
Christman noted there is an increase to office supplies but with these being the primary piece of 
running the County Clerk’s office; it’s not something we can eliminate.  
 
Information Technology – 2017 Budget Review 
 
 IT Director Keith Hooker attended the meeting to discuss his 2017 budget requests for 
Information Technology (A1680) and Central Service Telephone (A1610). Mr. Hooker noted a 
decrease of $11,000 in A1610 (Central Service Telephone). Chairman Crandall questioned the 
increase of $3,800 in A1680.405 (Conference Expense).  Mr. Hooker explained that this expense was 
typically paid out of the County Treasurer’s budget but due to additional staff members attending 
training conferences this year; this expense needs to be transferred back to Information Technology’s 



Budget Committee 
August 29, 2016 

Page 3 of 4 

budget. Mr. Hooker went on to state that the Health Department and Social Services receive funding 
back from the state for services we provide; therefore, we can budget an additional $5,000 in revenue. 
Legislator Root questioned when departments need to purchase new computers if this expense 
comes out of Information Technology. Mr. Hooker stated Information Technology will make 
recommendations based on needs and wants, but each department pays for their own computers. 
County Treasurer Terri Ross noted that Information Technology has a $21,000 savings in their 2017 
budget request.  
 
County Treasurer – 2017 Budget Review 
 
 County Treasurer Terri Ross attended the meeting to discuss her 2017 budget requests for the 
following cost centers:  Treasurer (A1325), Tax Sale and Redemption (A1362), Auditing (A1671), 
Taxes on Municipal Property (A1950), Community College (A2495), County Reforestation (A8710), 
and Debt Service Fund.   Ms. Ross noted her department doesn’t get any real revenue other than 
what is generated from copies that are sold or tax searches. Chairman Crandall questioned why there 
is such a reduction in charges for tax sales services.  Ms. Ross explained that they are seeing a 
decrease in the number of searches we are actually doing, and that we estimated on the high end in 
2016.  Our postage can now be charged back to a delinquent taxpayer so we have seen a reduction 
in our postage costs so Ms. Ross feels comfortable reducing that budget item by $3,500. Ms. Ross 
doesn’t anticipate any increase aside from the normal 2.5 percent to their New World System 
Maintenance contract. Ms. Ross stated while it’s really hard to predict what can happen with 
A2495.421 (Community Colleges), we are doing well with our budgeting and can reduce that by 
$70,000.  Ms. Ross went on to discuss the Debt Service Fund which is where we make our payment 
on our bonds.  For the last couple of years we’ve been fortunate enough to have remaining funds from 
the Jail project to make our payments, but with that no longer available, we need to increase this 
account by $505,000. 
 
Veterans’ Service Agency – 2017 Budget Review 
 
 Veterans’ Service Agency Director Michael Hennessy attended the meeting to discuss his 
2017 budget requests (A6510). Mr. Hennessy stated they have a good workable budget and with 
what the Veterans are bringing in, their request is reasonable. Mr. Hennessy wanted to note that 
recently he has done a lot of advocating for two veterans, and it resulted in one receiving $167,000 in 
back compensation and the second receiving $147,000 in back compensation. Mr. Hennessy also 
noted that he’s booking into October for Veteran’s to come see him. Legislator Healy wanted to note 
that on several occasions he has had several veteran’s approach him and comment on what a good 
job Mr. Hennessy is doing with this program.  
 
Consumer Affairs (Weights & Measures) – 2017 Budget Review 
 
 Weights & Measures Director Gilbert Green attended the meeting to discuss his 2017 budget 
requests (A6610).  Mr. Green stated his budget is straightforward, and he was able to make cuts in 
his conference and vacation/school expenses due to receiving a grant from the Weights and 
Measures National Conference.  

Sheriff/Jail/E-911 – 2017 Budget Review 
 

Sheriff Rick Whitney attended the meeting to discuss 2017 budget requests for the Sheriff’s 
Office/Jail/E-911 (A3117, A3020, A3110, A3111, A3112, A3152, A3510, and A3150). Sheriff Whitney 
stated that while the Jail is only 8 years old, it is a 24/7 operation, resulting in an increased need for 
maintenance and equipment replacement. Sheriff Whitney also noted that the cost of ammunition has 
increased significantly and it’s getting harder and harder to get so they typically have to order it a year 
ahead to ensure it’s here at the range. Sheriff Whitney noted that in the past we’ve been fortunate to 
have low medical expenses so we could possibly make cuts in that area. County Administrator 
Timothy Boyde questioned how often we are replacing uniforms. Accountant Randy Hartwick stated 



Budget Committee 
August 29, 2016 

Page 4 of 4 

every two years everyone runs through a set of clothing.  Full-time employees receive three sets, and 
part-time employees receive two sets. County Administrator Boyde questioned the $120,000 increase 
in overtime costs and whether or not we are at a point to bring on additional staff.  Sheriff Whitney 
stated that they have done that in the past and it has helped to decrease that expense.  Accountant 
Randy Hartwick added it would be about a $10,000 - $15,000 savings per year.  

Probation - 2017 Budget Review 
 

Probation Director Robert Starks attended the meeting to discuss his 2017 budget requests for 
the Probation Department (A3140, A3142, and A3143).  

 
Mr. Starks stated he was able to keep his budget the same as 2016 with the exception that he 

was informed by Information Technology they need a new server; therefore, he needs to increase his 
expenses by approximately $10,000. Mr. Starks indicated they do currently have additional funds in 
their rental account, so if additional cuts needed to be made he could see it being there. Legislator 
Hopkins questioned the request to purchase nineteen phones when we plan to move over to the new 
phone system by end of the year.  Mr. Starks stated this request is what we pay annually for our 
service plan to the phones.  County Treasurer Terri Ross noted that Mr. Starks’ department is one of 
the few that is charged separately on a monthly basis for his phones service plan.  
 
Adjournment 
 

There being no further business to come before the committee, a motion was made by 
Legislator Fanton, seconded by Legislator Root and carried to adjourn the meeting at 12:08 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Meghan Washer, Secretary to Clerk of the Board 
Allegany County Board of Legislators       
 
 
  


